U. S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION VII . e "

1901 N. FIFTH STREET COHCY T PO

KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 66101 "y

BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR .

In the Matter of ‘ '

- Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0034
Anawim Housing, Inc. |
921 Sixth Avenue, Suite B
Des Moines, Jowa 50309-1227

Respondént :

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

"The U.S. Enwronmental Protection Agency (EPA) Region VII and Anawim Housing,
Inc. (Respondent) have agreed to a seitlement of th1s action before filing of a complamt and thus
' %hls action 18 s1multaneous1y comnmenced and concluded pursuant to Rules 22.13(b) and
22. 18(b)(2) of the Consohdated Ruies of Practice Governing the Admm:lstratwe Assessment of
Civil Penalties,- Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Renovation,.v_ :
Termination or Suspenéion_of Perrfxité (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and
22.18(b)(2). | |

FACTUAL.ALLEGATIONS

Jurisdiction
1. This proceeding is an administrative action for the assessment of civil penalties
instituted pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.5.C.

§2615(a).



IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc.
. Docket No, TSCA-07-2008-0034

2. This Consent Agreement and Final Order serves as notice that EPA has reason to
| believe that R-espondent llzas violated Section 409 of TSCA, 15 US.C. § 2689, by failmg to
‘ comply with the regulatory reqauements of 40 CFR. Paﬂ: 745, Subpart F Dzsclosure of Known
Lead-Based Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards Upon Sale or Lease of Res:denrzal
Property, promulgated pursuant to Section 101 8 of the Residentiai Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, PUSC. § 4852d.
_ Pt

‘3. The Complainant, by _delegation from the Admihjstrator of the EPA, 1s. th'e Chief,
Toxics and Pest101des Branch EPA, Region VIL |

4 The Respondent 1s Anaw1m Housmg, Inc., a nonproﬁt corporatmn authonzed to

~ conduct business in the state of Iowa.

~ Statutory and Regulatory Background‘ _

5. C(mgress passed the Reszdentml Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (the |
Act), 4£USC. §§ 4851 to 4856 to address the need to control exposm‘e to lead- based pamt
khazards The Act amended TSCA by addmg Sections 401 to 412 150U.8.C. §§ 2681 to 2692.
~ Section 1018 of the Act required EPA and the Department of Housmg and Urban Development
‘ (HUD) to 501nt1y {ssue regulations requiring the disclosme of known lead—based palnt and/or
-lead—based paint hazards by persons selling or leasing housmg constructed be_fpre the phaseout of
fesidcntial lead-based paint .ﬁse in 1978. Thé regﬁiations', issued March 6, .1'996, and codified at
40 C.F.R. Part 745 Subp.art F, require that sellers and lessor of most ;esidénti.al housing built
before 1978: a) disclose the presence of Enown’ lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards
in the target housing; b) provide purchasers and lessees with any available records or reporfs

pertaining to the presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards;. ¢) provide
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"IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc.
Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0034

' purchasers and lessees With a federally approved lead hazard mformation pamphlet d) prov1de
purchasers with a 10~ day opportunzty to conduct a risk assessment or inspection for the presence
of Iead based paint and/or lead based paint hazards before the purchase1 is obligated under any
purchase contract; and ¢) include certain disclosure and acknowledgment language n the sales or
leasing_contract;. The failure or refusal to comply with the regulations is a violation of Section
1018 of the Act and Sec.tion 409 of TSCA. |

Alleged Violations

6. ;l"he Complaiﬁaﬁt hereby states and alleges that Respondent has violated TSCA and
federal regulations pfomulgated tﬁereunder, as folio'Ws:

7. Respondent is, and at all times r’eférréd to herein was, a “person” within the meaning
of TSCA. |

8. The Properties leased by Respondent were constructed before 1978; therefore, they are
“térget housing” as that ferm 18 defined by 40 C.F.Rj § ;745.103 :

9. 'Respondent fs the “agent,” as that term is defined by 40 CFR. § 745.103, of a
res;dentlal housmg umt located at 1635 Szxth Avenue, Number 10 Des Momes lowa.

10. Infc)rmatloﬁ collected dunng an BEPA review of Respondent’s records as a result of an
information requesi Jetter sent on July 10, 2007, shows that Respondent entered into a confract to
lease the property located at 1635 Sixth Avenue, Number 10, onJ anuary 1, 2006. |

11. Information collected shows that Reépondent féﬂed to provide the lessee of the
Property managed by Respondent Witﬁ an EPA-approved lead hézard information pémphlét or t§
pex’form any other lead-based paint disclosure activities before Igssee was obligéted under the

contract to lease the térget housing units méllaged by Resporndent.

Page 3 of 15



IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc.
Docket No. TSCA-)7-2008-0034

12. Respondent’s failure o provide an EPA—z;pproved lead hazard information pamphlet
is a violation of 40 CFR. § 7_'45.107(&)(1) and, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 18(e), a .
Viola_tidn of Section 1018 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 48‘52(1, and Section 209 of TSCA, 15US8.C. §
2689, aﬁd thus Respoﬁdent is subject to civil penalties under Section 16 of?TSCA, 15US.C.§
2615. |
| Count II

13. The facts re_ferénced in Paragraphs 1 thfough 8 are herein incorpogatéd by reference.

14. Respondent is the “agent,” és.that'term is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 745.103, of a
residential housing unit locat:ed a{ 12’.%5 Seventh Street, Des Moines,‘ Towa.

15. Infonnétion collected during an EPA. 1‘6view of Respondeﬂt’s records as a reSult'bf an
in’forrgatioﬁ request Iefter sent on July 10, 2007, shows that Respondent enfered .into a contract to
lease the propeﬁy located ét 1235 S-éventh Street, on Scptembér 15,2006.

' 16.'Inf0rmatién collected shows that Respondent failed to pg:rfonh the folidwing acts
befofe the ieésee- was obligated under a contract to lease the farget housing unit:

» include the Lead Waming .S.’tatement; | |

* inciiuie a statement by the lessor disclosing the pfesence of i{nown lead—baséd paint-
~ and/or Iead-basled paint hazards or indicating no lknowledge of th¢ presence of same;
* include a list of any records or ‘rep'ofss available to lessor pertaining to lead~baéed
paint/hazards or indicétiné no such records/reports aniIaEie;
_» include a statement affirming lessee’s receipt of required information;
* include the acknoﬁledgement by the agent that it has informed Jessor of lessor’s legal
 obligations; énd_
e include ‘lessor and .ag.ent signaturesl certifying to accuracy of s‘tat_ements/informaﬁoh,

Page 4 0f 15



IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Tnc.
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17. Respondent’s failure to perform the acts indicﬁfed in Paragraph 16 above are
violations of 40 CFR. §745.1 13(b)(i) through 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6) énd 745.115, and in
| accordance with 40 CFR. § 7{15.1 18(e), violations'_ of Section 1018 of the Act, 42 G.S.C. §
48l52d, and Seétion 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2689, and thus Respondent is subject to civil
penalties under Section 16 of TSCA, 15 US.C. § 2615.

Count III
18, The facts refercnce& in Pa@ragraphs 1 through 8 are herein incorporated by reference.

19. Respondent'is the “agent,” as th_at ter_m 18 deﬁnea by 40 C.F.R. § 745.103, 0f a
| residential housing unit located at 1635 Sixth Avenue, Number 11, Des Moines, lowa.

20, Information Coﬂecteé during an EPA review of Resﬁondent’s records as a result of an
1n{ ormatmﬁ request letter sent on July 10, 2007, shows that Respondent entered into a contract to

lease the property located at 1635 Sixth Avenue, Number 11, on January 28 2004.

21. Informatmﬂ collected shows that Respondent failed to perform the following acts

before the lessee was obligated under a contract to lease the target housing unit:

]

include the Lead Warning Statement;
> include a stétément by the iessor disdosing the pfeéeﬁce of known 1¢ad—based paint
a'nd/or lead-based paint hazards or indicating no knéWledge of the presence of same,
» include a list of any records or >rep0r.ts. available to 1esso¥ pertaining to lead-based
paint/hazards or indicating no such recordé/reborts available; |
‘ * inclade a statement affirming lessee’s:receipt of requiréd_ information,
s ipclude the acknowledgement by the agent that it has informed lessor of lessor’s legal
obhgations and

s mclude lessor and agent signatures certifying to accuracy of statements/ mfonnanon
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IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc.
Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0G034

22. Respondent s failure to perform the acts indicated in Paragraph 21 above are
violations of 40 C. F R. § 745, 113(b)(1) through 40 CF.R. §745. 113(b)(6) and 745.115, and in
accordance with 40 C.FR. § 745.118(e), violations of Section 1018 of the Act, 420U.8.C. §
4852{1, and Section 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2689, and thus Respondent is subject to civil.

penalties under Section 16 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615.

CONSENY AGREEMENT

23. For purposes of this proceeding, Respoﬁdent admits the jur-isdi'ctional allegations set
forth above.

24. Respohdent admits the factual ailegations set forth above. _

25 Respondent waives its rlght to a judicial or adm1n1strat1ve hearing on any issue of fact
or law set forth above and its right to appeal the Final Order aecompanymg thzs Consent
Agreement

26. Respondent and EPA agree to conmhate this matter without the necessity of a formal |
hearing and fo bear their respeetwe costs and attorney’s fees

27. Respondent cemﬂes by the si gnlng of this Consent Agreement and Final Order that
to the best of Respon‘dent ] knowledge, it ;s presently in comphance.wﬂh all reqmrements of 40
C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F.

28. Respondent consents fo .theissuance of the Final Order hereinafter recited and
consents to the payment of a mitigated civil penalty of .Five Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-
Eighf Dollars’ ($ 5,748}, as speciﬁed in the Final Order, to be paii_i within thirty (30) days of the
effeetive date of the Final Order. |

29. Payment of this civil penalty in full shall 1'es61Ve all civil and administrative claims
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IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc.
Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0034

fpr all violations of Seétio_ri 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. 2689 and. 40 C.F.R. Subpart F alleged in
this dqcument. | |

30. In settlement of this matter, Respondeﬁt APrees 1_;0 complete the following
Supplemental Env‘ironmental Project '(SEP), whic:h th(ia parties agree is intended to secure
' 31gn1ﬁcant env1romnenta1 and/or public health benefits Respondent shaﬂ by and through a-

certified iead abatement contractor, perform abatement in the form of enclosure on the external
.siding, abate the sta;irwell and stairs to the bascment, a.nd abate bare soil located on the no:s.‘theast
,and_lsouthlside of a home located at 1315 Sixth Ayemic, Des Moines, lowa. Lead testing
conducted by the Polk Cou'n'ty' Health Department idéntifie& elevated levels' of lead paint én
fo}lowing areas in and around 1315 Si?d;h Avenue: e}{terior siding, window- trim, door trim,
threshoid other exterior trim, interior wmdow trough in the Southeast bedroom cléset baseﬁlent
stairwell and stairs, and bare soil oﬁ the northeast and southem sides of thé home.  Respondent
agrees fo comply with the HUD gu1dehnes for the abatement and enclosure projects, and conduct -
. ¢learance testmg The SEP 1s fuﬂher described in Attachment A to this CAFO.

31 Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Final Order, Respondent wﬁl
prowde EPA W1‘sh a copy of the letter sent to the Iowa Department of Pubho Health, Bureau. of
Lead Poisoning ?revention informing the state of its intent to perform a SEP and requestmg
procédu‘rai information pertaining to performance of the SEP.

_ 32. The total expenditure for the SEP shall be not less than Sixteen Thousand Four
"Hundred Dollars ($ 16 400) and the SEP shall be completed no later than ninety (90) days of the
effective date of this CAFO. All work required to complete the SEP shall be performed in

compliance with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations.
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IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc.
Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0034

33. Respdndent agrees that the construction work on all SEPs referenced in Paragraph 30
above will be performed by entities licensed and/or certified to handle, inspect, and/or dispose of
lead-based-paint contaminated waste.

34, Within thirty (3 0) days of completion of the SEP, Respondent shall submit a SEP
| Completion Report to EPA, with a copy to the state agency identified below. The SEP
Cbmpleﬁon Report shall contain the following:

(i) A detailed descripﬁon of the SEP és implemented,;

(ii) Ttemized costs, documented by copies of purchase orders, receipts or canceled

checks;

(iii). The final é‘batement report, as required by state la\x‘r;‘ and

(iv)- The following certiﬁcaﬁon signed by an officer of Respondent:

I certify under penalty of law that I have exammed and am familiar with the
information submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on my
inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the
information, the information is true, accurate, and complete. [ am aware that there
are significant penaitles for submitting false information, including the possibility
of fines and imprisonment.

(v) The report shall be directed to the following:

As to EPA:

Crystal Mclntyre

WWPD/TOPE

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region VII

901 N. Fifth Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101.

As to the state:

Rita Gergely, Bureau Chief
Lucas State Office Building

321 E. 12th Street

Des Moines, Jowa 50319-0075.

35. In the event that Respondent fails to complete the SEP in accordance with this Order
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or to the extent that actual expenditures for the SEP do not equal or exeeed the amount of 1ﬁoney
| required to be.expended on the SEP ae set forth above, Respondent shall be liable for stipulated
penaihes as foliows: |
(i) Bxeept as provided in subparagraph ii immediately below, for a SEP which
" has siot been completed to the satisfaction of EPA in accordance with the terms of tfms
Order, Respondent shall pay a stipulated penal‘ey of Sixteen Thousand Four Hundred
Dollars ($- 1‘6,40()). | | |
(i) If the SEP is completed to the setisfae’eion of EPA but Respondent’s actual
' expendztures are less than 50 pereent of the amount of money requlred to be expended on
the SEP Respondent shall pay a stipuleted penalty of Two Thousand Dollars (5 2 000)
(1) Any st1pu1ated penaltles for Whmh Respondent is liable under this agreement
.‘ shall be due and payable within ten (10) days of Respondent g reeelpt ofa wntten
demand from Complainant. | |
36. 'Respondent'certiﬁeslthat it isnot required to perform or develop the SEP by any
federal, state or lo_eal law or regu}ation; nor is Respondent required to perform or deveiop the
‘ SEP by agreement, graet or as injunctive relief in this or any other case or to comply with state or
local requirereeets. Respondent further certifies tha’e Re_spondent has not received, and is not
p1‘eeent1y negotiating to receive, .eredit n any other‘enforeement action for the SEP.
37. For federal income tax purposes, Respondent agrees that it will neither eapltahze
into inventory or bas;s nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in performmg the SEP
38. Any public stetemeot oral or written, in print, film or other media, made by
: Respondent making reference o' the SEP shall umiude the followmg 1anguage “Thls ploject was

undertaken in connection with the settlement of an enforcement action taken by the Umted States
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' Environmental Protection Agency.”

39. Respondent understands that its failure to timely pay any portion of the miti gated civil
penalty stated in Paragraph 28 above or any portion of a stlpulated penalty as stated in Paragraph
35 above may result in the commencement of a civil action in Federal District Court to recover the
full remaining baiance, along with penalties and accumulated interest. In such case, inferest shall
accrue thereon at the applicable statutory rate on tﬁe unpaid balance until such civil or stipulated
penalty and any accrued interest are paui n full A late payment handhng charge of $15 will be
imposed after thirty (30) days and an additiopal $15 will be charge for each subsequent thirty (3 0

“day pertod. -Additionaliy, as provided by 31 US.C. § 37 17(8)(2),. a six pe.rcent (6% per annum
penalty (late charge) mdy be éssessed on any amount not paid within ninety (90) days of thé due

date.

FINAL ORDER
~Putsuant to the provisions of the Toxic ‘Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 us.c.
8§ 2601-2692, and based upoﬁ the infdrmation set forth in the Consent Agreelhent' accompanying
| , this Fmal Order, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: | |
1. Respondent shall pay a mitigated civil penalty of Five ‘Thousand Seven Hundred
Forty—E1ght Dollars ($ 5,748.00) w1thm thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Final Order.
_Such payment shall 1dentify the Respondent by name and Docket No TSCA-07-2008- 0034 and |

shall be by certified ot cashier’s check made payable to the "Umted States Treasury” and sent to:

US Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

PO Box 979077

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000.
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Wire transfers should be directed to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York:™

Federal Reserve Bank of New York

ABA = 021030004

Account = 68010727

SWIFT address = FRNYUSB3

33 Liberty Street

New York, New York 10045

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read
“D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”

‘2. A copyof the eﬁeck-or other information confitming payment shall simultaneously be
sent to the following: -
Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
" Region VII :
901 N. Fifth Street
© Kansas City, Kansas 66101; and
Kelley Catlin, Attorney
Office of Regional Counsel
U.S. BEnvironmental Protection Agency
Region VI
901 N. Fifth Street
Kansas City, Kansas 66101,
3. Respondent shall complete the Supplemental Environmental Project in accordance
with the provisions s‘et forth in the Consent Agreement and shall be liable for any stipulated
penaliy for faﬂure to complete such pro; ject as specified in the Consent Agreement

4. Respondent and Compiamant shall each bear their own costs and attomeys fees

incurred as a result of this matter.
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IN THE MATTER 'OF Avawim Housing, Inc. -
- Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0034

RESPONDENT _
Anawim Housing, Inc.

Da;te: //Qg{gé & A : By: ‘M W W/W

Stella MNeill, J05m1 Tres/ Eee Dol

Print Name Title
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IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc.
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. COMPLAINANT
U. S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Date: I / / / Z/ 0? , MW ' M&"
e : : Tafflie Green, Chief
Tdxics and Pesticides Branch

Water, Wetlands, and Pesticides Division

Date: 1. {L/0B LoDy //UHA .
' : B Keliey(taﬂm
Office of Regmnal Counsel
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IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc.
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IT IS SO ORDERED. This Order shall become effective immmediately.

-. g
v s - N 7
vu ), 19 20 o X
-7 ROBERT L. PATRICK
' Regional Judicial Officer =
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region VII
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Attachment A
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SEP Proposal for Environmental Protection Agency

Anawim Housing is general partner for the Riverbend Duplexes LP and leases the unit at
1315 Sixth Avenue. This unit is currently leased to a family composed of a single mother
and four children. ‘ -

The home was tested throughout for lead content and the report is attached to this.

proposal. Lead was found in three areas: exterior siding, bare ground surface around the

_ building, and basement stair treads. Anawim Housing will address all three lead issues in
this home. All work performed. on this building will be done in compliance with HUD

- guidelines. ' ‘ '

Attached to this proposal is a signed acceptance of a bid to perform this work. ‘The’
signed bid states the cost of the work and the estimated completion date for the work.
The timeline is dependent on the weather but we fully expect this timeline to be
workable. Attached with this bid is the documentation that qualifies this contractor to
perform this work. |



Acceptance of Bid . -
Lead abatement / Vinyl Siding

1315 6" Ave
October 28, 2008

Using LEAD SAFE WORK PRACTICES T.C. Construction, General Contractor, And
Certified Lead Abatement Contractor will complete the following ltems to meet Polk
County Health Dept. guidelines.

1. To meet Lead Abatement requwements Supply and install vmyi Sidmg, fish
scale and coil stock to cover all exterior wood and trim on the house, foundation,
and front porch (not including porch floor). This will include all doorjambs,
thresholds, window seals (gutters), and wood openings in the foundation.

a. Siding Brand: Certinteed “Main Street” Dbl 4” |
b. Siding Color: Heritage Cream

c. Fish Scale Color: Sandstone Beige

d. Coil (trim) Color: Burgundy (To match exrstlng)

2. To meet Lead Abatement requirements - supply and install the proper ground
cover and pulverized brick on all bare soil surrounding the house

" 3. To meet Lead Abatement requirements — Remove and replace basement stair
' treads using treated lumber. \

Schedule: All work will bé completed in a workmanship like, and expedient fashion.
Owner MUST give notice at least 24 hours in advance prior {o entering an occupied
unit; contractor will provide a schedule in advance of projected start times for each unit
Pagment Unpaid baiance due in full upon completion, and final !nspec’uon of owner .

A signed copy of this document_ must be attached to a detailed proposal from the

contractor. (,puﬁ TREOE TO STATT

Total Bid:ﬁ/é}‘{ 00,00 (>Dep031t“g'} 57‘(0&6 ?xmﬂcﬁﬁ l‘f ’760

: Estimated Start Date: Moy 154n Estimated Comp!etion Date: Nav 30&’@)\_

_Contractor \—@C’]ﬁﬂ?%ﬂﬁﬂ’ 7-1 M Address <22,/Z_ A 55/
Signed: %Q\;‘?\ - Date: S Zg/pé/

Anawirn Housing, 921 6th Ave Suite B, Des Moines, 1A, 50309

Date: /7 ’,}-8" @

~ Accepted By: _




T.C. CONSTRUCTION

GENERAL CONTRACTOR &

CERTIHED LEAD ABATEMENT FEDERAL CONTRACTOR

2212 Lyon Sireet
Des Moines, TA 50317 -
(515) 263-8902

- Project Contact Person Q&wA @@@({, ~ Telephone 5/5-35 96 S/ é
Project Address 3145 fp’h/4V ¢ City D@g m,e) in e %

o (o e O
I‘(\%Sra) )i\m'/{\ S &w»(" Crewe/f‘i,vm 1} \Atm(‘/—-«
,\A\Qlo \ A‘tuW\, wmm 91& wm(lﬂ?,!& Ck,nn) A L\_
Ra@\&f‘ e,._\!bo& AN w/r@nt 5. |

7 TAS\UM\ win {) We,Qr\‘” A@f) { @‘Tf‘oh ﬁ,\/\ (}w\d P,:) 1] { {‘%\«f ot
/ { abor And Materials Estimate  Actual:$ // Lhop ,,?f, |

Cash Deposit:y___ | *Balancc due in cash upon job completion

I_ accé;pt | reject this busix’leés pmposal fof the abm}c mentioned

e
Client signdt upe:. P)\ f\ f\'\f\ \M // / Datf:

TC Coxisimcuon operates with epen coéf!npm ation with our clients. If tbe amount of
the job needs to be altered due to unforseen issues, TC Construction will contact you to
make sure you understand the change of service and ok any additions to the agreed upon

charges. TC Construction works hard to make you happy with your results.
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IN THE MATTER OF Anawim Housing, Inc., Respondent
Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0034

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a true and cortect copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order
was sent this day in the following manner to the addressees:

Copy hand delivered to
Attorney for Complainant:

Kelley Catlin

Assistant Regional Counsel

Region VII ' -

United States Environmental Protection Agency
901 N. 5™ Street ‘ '

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

Copy by Certified Mail Return Receipt to:

Robert J. Douglas
Davis Brown Law Firm
The Davis Brown Tower

215 10th Street, Ste. 1300

- Des Moines, fowa 50309 | | | :
s 14108 Homnyness

Kathy Robinébn -
~ Hearing Clerk, Region 7 -



